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It gives me great pleasure to present Bastion 
Minerals inaugural 2021 Annual Report.

I am pleased to take this opportunity, as 
your incoming Executive Chairman, to share 
with you my views on Bastion Minerals and 
where we are today, and my thoughts on the 
forward strategy for our Company.

Following the successful listing of Bastion 
Minerals on the Australian Securities 
Exchange (ASX) in March 2021, the Company 
has been extremely busy building a solid 
foundation for discovery at Capote, Cometa 
and Garin projects, located in the mineral-rich 
Atacama region of Chile.  

As COVID-19 disrupted the global economy, 
businesses, and personal lives everywhere 
in the world; perhaps counter intuitively, 
the gold and copper market embarked on 
an unprecedented run of growth, led by 
anticipated global economic recovery and the 
shift towards a low carbon economy. 

With this backdrop, Bastion benefited in 
2021 both from growing interest in copper 
and from its location in Chile, where the 
pandemic is being managed effectively. 
We took advantage of this to complete a 

transformational year, with a clear strategy to 
discover and define globally significant, high-
grade gold and copper-gold deposits in Chile. 

At our flagship Capote Gold Project, we 
successfully consolidated the entire district 
entering a binding Agreement to acquire 
100% of the high-grade San Juan Gold 
Project and surrounding licences within 
Capote Mining District. This transformational 
agreement has the potential to transform 
Bastion into a significant future gold 
producer. Extensive ground work at Capote, 
including geological mapping, geochemistry 
and detailed geophysics has identified 
numerous high-priority drill ready targets. 
We anticipate final environmental and drill 
permits to be approved in Q2 2022, and look 
forward to the first modern exploration drill 
program to be conducted in this historically 
significant gold district. 

Ross Landles
Executive Chairman

CHAIRMAN’S 
LETTER
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The Company will undertake an 
approximately 5,000-metre diamond drilling 
program, with a focus on testing the shallow 
surface expression of multiple vein systems 
where high-grade gold has been returned 
from recent rock-chip campaigns. 

At our Cometa Copper Project, detailed field 
works has identified five large-scale copper 
target areas across the project. While a 
helicopter borne magnetic and radiometric 
survey was completed over the entire Garin 
Gold-Silver Project. The program identified 
multiple large-scale copper porphyry 
signatures. 

The Board is dedicated to delivering 
substantial returns for shareholders through 
discovery of globally significant deposits in 
Chile, that will drive value-creative events 
for all stakeholders. 

I would like to personally thank you for 
your support over the past 12 months. We 
look forward to unlocking more value from 
Capote Gold District and our other Chilean 
exploration projects over the course of 2022.

Yours sincerely

Ross Landles 
Executive Chairman
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The Capote Project consists of a historical 
high-grade gold deposit (San Juan) and 
surrounding tenements. Bastion’s objective at 
Capote is to define a low tonnage, high-grade 
gold deposit and assess the potential for 
high-grade copper gold deposits.

During the year, the Company entered into 
a Binding Framework Agreement for the 
execution of a Mining Purchase Option 
Contract with Sociedad Minera del Norte 
(SMDN) to enter into an Option to acquire 
100% of the San Juan Gold Project and 
surrounding licences within the Capote 
Mining District in the Mineral-rich Atacama 
Region of Chile (Figure 1)1. 

The San Juan Gold Project comprises a 
package of 18 Mining Licences, comprising 
approximately 11.5km2. All newly acquired 
tenements are strategically located in within 
the Company’s Capote Mining District 
and includes the high-grade San Juan, 
Resurgemento and Yayito veins systems.

Work completed at Capote during the 
year consisted of foundational geological, 
geochemical and geophysical data collection 
aimed at ensuring effective and efficient 
drill targeting.

Detailed geological mapping and rock chip 
sampling were undertaken in numerous 
campaigns. At total of 720 rock chips and 
channel samples were collected throughout 
the year2,3. These rock-chips highlighted 
extensive high-grade gold mineralisation 
throughout the lease and provided an insight 
into potential Copper-Gold “IOCG” style 
mineralisation. The average gold grade of 
these 720 rock-chips was 1.47g/t Au with a 
maximum grade of 33.6g/t Au (Figure 2). The 
average copper grade of these 720 rock-chips 
was 0.12% Cu with a maximum of 5.53% Cu.

To support this geological and geochemical 
data, detailed geophysical surveys have 
been completed during the reporting period. 
High resolution airborne and ground-based 
magnetics have been acquired4. This data has 
been inverted into 3D models which allow 
the surface expression of mineralisation to 
be projected to depth. Induced polarisation 
and AMT data has also been collected over 
the San Juan, Resurgimiento and Yayito 
prospects. This data images the distribution 
of chargeable minerals such as sulphides, 
which often corelate with mineralisation. 
These datasets have been combined into 
detailed 3D geophysical models which 
assist in accurate drill targeting.

A drill program of approximately 
5000m of diamond drilling 
has been planned for Capote, 
targeting extensions to existing 
high-grade gold vein and new 
unmined targets throughout the 
lease. Environmental approval 
processes are underway5 and 
drilling is slated to commence 
in Q2, 2022.

1. ASX Announcement 26 August 202 
– Option to Acquire the High-Grade San Juan Gold Mine

2. ASX Announcement 30 September 2021 
– Exploration Update: Capote Mining District

3. ASX Announcement 1 December 2021 
– Extensions to high-grade surface gold at Capote 

4. ASX Announcement 7 April 2021 
– Geophysics Identifies High-Priority Gold targets at Capote

5. ASX Announcement 22 March 2022 
– Final approval submitted for drilling at Capote

CAPOTE GOLD PROJECT

“

REVIEW OF 
OPERATIONS
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DETAILED GEOLOGICAL 
MAPPING AND ROCK 
CHIP SAMPLING WERE 
UNDERTAKEN IN 
NUMEROUS CAMPAIGNS.

“
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Figure 1 – Capote Mining District
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Figure 2 – Capote Mining District with Rock-Chip Sample Locations and selected high-grade samples labelled
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The Cometa Copper Project consists of 
approximately 56km2 of granted mining and 
exploration tenements approximately 10km 
south of Hot Chili’s Cortadera Project and 
approximately 40km southeast of Vallenar. 
Cometa is an early-stage exploration project 
with multiple high-grade copper targets 
identified from limited rock chip sampling. 
Bastion will focus on bringing advanced 
exploration techniques to the Cometa Copper 
Project to discover large-scale, high-grade 
iron-oxide copper gold deposits. 

Work at Cometa has focused 
on foundational geological, 
geochemical and geophysical 
data collection to allow for 
accurate drill targeting.

The Company completed multiple mapping 
and rock-chip campaigns during the year. A 
total of 834 rock chips and channel samples 
were collected identifying five new target 
areas across the lease (Figure 3)6. These 
targets have been named Aldebaran, 
Orion, Centauro, Scorpion and Perseus. 
The average copper grade of these 834 
rock-chips was 0.2% Cu with a maximum 
of 4.42% Cu. 

During the year a high-resolution magnetics 
survey was conducted across the Cometa 
Lease7. This data has been inverted into 
a detailed 3D model which is providing 
significant information of sub-surface 
structures and potential extensions to 
mineralisation identified at surface.

These datasets are being combined into 
detailed 3D models and drilling is planned 
for Cometa in late 2022.

COMETA COPPER PROJECT

“

6. ASX Announcement 10 June 2021 
- Additional High-Grade Copper Rock-Chips from Cometa

7. ASX Announcement 18 May 2021 
– Geophysics identifies high-priority Copper Target
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Figure 3 – The Cometa Copper Project with Copper Rock Chips
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The Garin Silver Project consists of 13km2 of 
exploration licences situated 40km to the 
east of the major mining city of Copiapó. 
Historic exploration at Garin has been limited 
to basic rock chip sampling and geological 
mapping. Mineralisation at Garin is associated 
with high-grade gold-silver bearing 
epithermal veins, as large individual 
veins, and vein swarms.

These epithermal systems will 
have been driven by a larger 
porphyry system and there is 
significant potential for this 
porphyry system to be near 
surface at Garin.

Work conducted at Garin during the year 
consisted of foundational geological, 
geochemical and geophysical dataset 
collection.

Multiple geological mapping campaigns were 
conducted with rock-chipping during the 
year. At total of 257 rock chips were collected 
throughout the year (Figure 4). These rock-
chips highlighted extensive high-grade silver 
and gold mineralisation throughout the 
lease and provided an insight into potential 
Copper-Gold porphyry style mineralisation. 
The average silver grade of these 257 rock-
chips was 11.2g/t Ag with a maximum grade 
of 223g/t Ag. The average gold grade of 
these 257 rock-chips was 0.66g/t Au with a 
maximum of 25.5g/t Au. The average copper 
grade of these 257 rock-chips was 0.18% Cu 
with a maximum of 2.23% Cu. 

A helicopter borne magnetic and radiometric 
survey was completed over the entire Garin 
Project. The objective of this survey was to 
map the potential porphyry related alteration 
systems at Garin and expand these at depth8.  

The program identified multiple large-scale 
copper porphyry signatures at the Garin 
Project, and this data will be refined and 
continually reviewed to assist in providing 
a pipeline of additional targets for Bastion 
geologists to map and sample in the field.

GARIN SILVER PROJECT

“

8. ASX Announcement 5 July 2021 
– Large-Scale Copper Porphyry Targets Defined at Garin
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Figure 4 – The Garin Silver Project geology with reporting period rock chip silver results
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The directors present their report, together 
with the financial statements, on the 
consolidated entity (referred to hereafter as 
the ‘consolidated entity’) consisting of Bastion 
Minerals Limited (referred to hereafter as the 
‘Company’ or ‘parent entity’) and the entities 
it controlled at the end of, or during, the year 
ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of 
Bastion Minerals Limited during the whole of 
the financial year and up to the date of this 
report, unless otherwise stated:

Alan Ross Landles

David Joseph Nolan

Andrew Lachlan Stewart

Sam El-Rahim

Ralph Nicholas Stagg 
(resigned 2 September 2021)

 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the consolidated entity 
is mining exploration and evaluation in Chile.

DIVIDENDS

There were no dividends paid, recommended 
or declared during the current or previous 
financial year.

OPERATING RESULTS

The loss for the consolidated entity after 
providing for income tax amounted to 
$3,078,815 (31 December 2020: $1,058,784).

DIRECTORS’ 
REPORT
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Corporate 
  
Bastion Minerals Limited was admitted to the Official List and commenced quotation on the ASX on 15 March 2021 after 
closing an initial public offer of the Company’s shares (IPO) to raise $5 million before costs.  
  
On 13 September 2021, the Company announced it had completed a A$2.2 million (before costs) strategic placement through 
the issue of 11,000,000 Ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.20 per share. 
  
On 6 September 2021, the Company appointed Mr Ross Landles as Executive Chairman of Bastion Minerals after the 
resignation of Mr Ralph Stagg as Non-Executive Chairman. Additionally, Mr Phil Mackey was appointed on 21 September 
2021 as Company Secretary of Bastion Minerals, replacing Mr David Nolan who continues as Non- Executive Director. 
  
Significant changes in the state of affairs 
On 20 January 2021, the Company completed a capital raising of $100,000 from sophisticated investors through the issue 
of 1,000,000 shares at $0.10 per share. 
  
The Company raised $5,000,000 (before costs) through the issue of 25,000,000 ordinary shares at an issue price of $0.20 
per share upon completion to the Company's IPO. Official quotation of the Company's ordinary shares on the ASX 
commenced on 16 March 2021.  
  
On 20 September 2021, the Company issued 11,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares, at an issue price of $0.20, raising 
$2,200,000 before costs. 
  
There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the financial year. 
  
Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year 
On 17 January 2022, the Company announced that it had appointed Alvaro Trujillo as Country Manager in Chile, in order to 
drive the consolidated entity towards its maiden drill program within the Capote Mining District and surrounding vein systems 
in the mineral rich Atacama Region of Chile. 
  
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2021 that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect the consolidated entity's operations, the results of those operations, or the consolidated entity's state of affairs in future 
financial years. 
  
Likely developments and expected results of operations 
Information on likely developments in the operations of the consolidated entity and the expected results of operations have 
not been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the 
consolidated entity. 
  
Environmental regulation 
The consolidated entity is subject to and compliant with all aspects of environmental regulation of its exploration and mining 
activities in Chile. During the financial year, no active exploration fieldwork took place on the consolidated entity's tenements. 
The directors are not aware of any environmental law that is not being complied with. 
  
Information on directors 
Name:  Alan Ross Landles 
Title:  Executive Chairman 
Qualifications:  GradDipAppFin, CFP 
Experience and expertise:  Mr Landles has more than 20 years’ experience in leading high-performing banking 

teams across 9 countries and successfully developed and maintained C-suite 
relationships throughout Asia, Australia, and the USA. Mr Landles held senior 
leadership roles, Director and Managing Director titles, over a 15-year period, with 
global financial institutions Rothschild Bank AG, Credit Suisse AG, UBS AG, and 
Macquarie Bank Ltd. 

Other current directorships:  None 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  None 
Interests in shares:  4,557,544 fully paid ordinary shares 
Interests in options:  2,000,000 options over ordinary shares 
Interests in rights:  2,500,000 performance rights 
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Name:  David Joseph Nolan 
Title:  Executive Director until 25 October 2021and Company Secretary until 6 September 

2021, and Non-Executive Director thereafter. 
Qualifications: LL.B (Hon), BA Bond University
Experience and expertise: David has over 12 years’ experience as Chairman and Non-Executive Director to ASX

listed companies
with responsibilities including legal, regulatory, governance and equity and debt 
financings. David has over 24 years’ experience as a corporate lawyer.  David was 
previously a partner at a number of leading Sydney law firms advising on IPOs and 
ASX listings, corporate finance, mergers and acquisitions, fundraisings, restructuring 
and regulatory and governance. David has guided and advised companies across a 
range of industries and has extensive experience as an adviser and Board member to 
companies in the mining & resources sector.

Other current directorships:  None 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  Property Connect Holdings Limited (ASX:PCH - resigned 31 July 2021) 
Interests in shares:  3,892,769 fully paid ordinary shares 
Interests in options:  2,000,000 options over ordinary shares 
Interests in rights:  2,500,000 performance rights 

Name:  Andrew Lachlan Stewart 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Age:  BSc, PhD, MAIG, MSEG, MAICD 
Experience and expertise:  Dr Stewart is an exploration geologist with over 20 years’ experience in mineral 

exploration, primarily focused on project generation, project evaluation and exploration 
strategy development throughout Asia and Eastern Europe. Dr Stewart has expertise 
in porphyry copper-gold and epithermal gold deposits but has worked across a diverse 
range of commodities. He holds a BSc (Hons) from Macquarie University and a PhD 
from the Centre of Ore Deposits and Exploration Studies at the University of Tasmania. 
During his time at Ivanhoe Mines and Vale, he held various technical and management 
positions in Mongolia and Indonesia and has been involved in several greenfield 
discoveries. After providing technical and program management for Vale in Indonesia 
and Mongolia, Dr Stewart is currently Chief Executive Officer of Xanadu Mines. 

Other current directorships:  Xanadu Mines Ltd (ASX:XAM) 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  None 
Interests in shares:  4,032,544 fully paid ordinary shares 
Interests in options:  2,000,000 options over ordinary shares 
Interests in rights:  2,500,000 performance rights  

Name:  Sam El-Rahim 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Experience and expertise:  Mr El-Rahim is an experienced board member, managing director and venture capitalist 

who has an established career in identifying market opportunities, driving profitable 
growth, and leading high performance businesses and teams. Since incorporating his 
first company in 1982, he has achieved success in a range of industries and emerging 
markets with significant business, financial and property portfolio responsibilities across 
the Asia Pacific region. Qualified in Electrotechnology, Mr El-Rahim also forged 
government relations to provide turnkey systems and innovative software solutions. 

Other current directorships:  None 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  None 
Interests in shares: 
Interests in options: 
Interests in rights: 

2,505,000 fully paid ordinary shares  
1,000,000 options over ordinary shares  
Nil 
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Name:  Ralph Nicholas Stagg 
Title:  Non-Executive Chairman (resigned on 2 September 2021) 
Qualifications:  BSc MSc DIC FAusIMM MIMMM CEng 
Experience and expertise:  Mr Stagg is a Geologist with more than forty years’ experience in economic geology 

including project generation, exploration planning, managerial experience in listed and 
unlisted exploration, mining and engineering companies, and preparation of ore 
reserve estimations, valuations, experts’ reports and technical studies in Australasia, 
Africa, and the Middle East. Mr Stagg has served on the boards of ASX listed 
companies for more than twenty years, including Broken Hill Prospecting Ltd, Citadel 
Resource Group, Celamin Ltd Heritage Gold NZ Ltd and Sirocco Resources NL. During 
the last 10 years Mr Stagg was a co-Founder of Citadel Resource Group (based in 
Saudi Arabia) and Celamin Ltd in North Africa. Citadel Resource Group was taken over 
by Equinox. 

Other current directorships:  N/A 
Former directorships (last 3 years):  N/A 
Interests in shares:  N/A 
Interests in options:  N/A 
  
Other current directorships quoted above are current directorships for listed entities only and excludes directorships of all 
other types of entities, unless otherwise stated. 
  
Former directorships (last 3 years) quoted above are directorships held in the last 3 years for listed entities only and 
excludes directorships of all other types of entities, unless otherwise stated. 
  
Company secretary 
Mr David Nolan is an experienced company secretary and occupied this role until 21 September 2021. 
 
From this time the role, will was performed by Philip Mackey who is also an experienced company secretary and is currently 
secretary of a number of other listed entities. 
  
Meetings of directors 
The number of meetings of the Company's Board of Directors (the Board) and of each Board Committee held during the 
year ended 31 December 2021, and the number of meetings attended by each director were: 
  

 

 Full Board Nomination, Remuneration 
and Human Resources 

Committee 

Audit and Risk Committee 

  Attended  Held  Attended  Held  Attended  Held 
             
Alan Ross Landles  7  7  -  -  -  - 
David Joseph Nolan  7  7  1  1  -  - 
Andrew Lachlan Stewart  7  7  1  1  1  1 
Sam El-Rahim  7  7  1  1  1  1 
Ralph Stagg  4  4  -  -  1  1 
  
Held: represents the number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the relevant 
committee. 
  
Remuneration report (audited) 
The remuneration report details the key management personnel remuneration arrangements for the consolidated entity, in 
accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) (Corporations Act) and its Regulations. 
  
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling the 
activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors. 
  

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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The Remuneration report is set out under the following main headings: 
●  Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
●  Details of remuneration 
●  Service agreements 
●  Share-based compensation 
●  Additional information 
●  Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 
  
Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 
The objective of the consolidated entity's executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive 
and appropriate for the results delivered. The framework aligns executive reward with the achievement of strategic objectives 
and the creation of value for shareholders, and it is considered to conform to the market best practice for the delivery of 
reward. The Board of Directors ('the Board') ensures that executive reward satisfies the following key criteria for good reward 
governance practices: 
●  competitiveness and reasonableness 
●  acceptability to shareholders 
●  performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation 
●  transparency 
  
The Company has a Nomination, Remuneration and Human Resources Committee (the Committee). Ross Landles is 
Chairman and Andrew Stewart, and Sam El-Rahim are members. 
  
The Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing remuneration arrangements for its directors and executives. 
The performance of the consolidated entity depends on the quality of its directors and executives. The remuneration 
philosophy is to attract, motivate and retain high performance and high-quality personnel. 
  
In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive director and executive director 
remuneration is separate. 
  
Non-executive directors’ remuneration 
Fees and payments to non-executive directors reflect the demands and responsibilities of their role. Non-executive directors' 
fees and payments are reviewed annually by the Committee. The Committee may, from time to time, receive advice from 
independent remuneration consultants to ensure non-executive directors' fees and payments are appropriate and in line with 
the market. The Executive Chairman's total remuneration package is determined independently to the fees of other non-
executive directors based on comparative roles in the external market. The Executive Chairman is not present at any 
discussions relating to the determination of his own remuneration. 
  
ASX Listing Rules require the aggregate non-executive directors’ remuneration be determined periodically by a general 
meeting. In accordance with clause 10.7(a) of the Company’s Constitution, the total aggregate remuneration available to 
non-executive directors is $500,000 per annum.     
  
From time to time share options and performance rights may be awarded to newly appointed non-executive directors. Such 
share options or performance rights are issued to attract high calibre directors to the Board. The remuneration for the non-
executive directors during the current and prior financial years is set out in 'Details of remuneration' below. 
   
Executive remuneration 
The consolidated entity aims to reward executives based on their position and responsibility, with a level and mix of 
remuneration which has both fixed and variable components. 
  
The executive remuneration and reward framework has three components: 
●  base pay and non-monetary benefits 
●  share-based payments 
●  other remuneration such as superannuation 
  
The combination of these comprises the executive's total remuneration. 
  
Consolidated entity performance and link to remuneration 
Given the scale and nature of the consolidated entity's operations, remuneration is not currently linked to consolidated entity's 
performance. 
  

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONT.)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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Use of remuneration consultants 
Remuneration consultants have not been used during the current year. 
  
Voting and comments made at the Company's 2020 Annual General Meeting (AGM) 
At the 31 May 2021 AGM, 86.1% of the votes received supported the adoption of the remuneration report for the year ended 
31 December 2020. The Company did not receive any specific feedback at the AGM regarding its remuneration practices. 
  
Details of remuneration 
 
Amounts of remuneration 
Details of the remuneration of key management personnel of the consolidated entity are set out in the following tables. 
  

 

 Short-term benefits Post-
employment 

benefits 

 Long-term 
benefits 

 Share-
based 

payments 

 

 
   (Cash)   (Cash)  (Cash)  (Cash)  (Cash)  (Non-Cash)   

 
 
Cash salary 

 
Cash 

 
Consulting  

 
Super- 

 Long 
service 

 
Equity- 

 
 

  and fees  bonus  fees  annuation  leave  settled  Total 
2021  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 
               
Non-Executive Directors:               
Ralph Stagg **  30,000  -  -  -  -  -  30,000 
Andrew Stewart  ***  45,000  -  22,500  -  -  217,032  284,532 
David Nolan *  7,500  -  -  -  -  -  7,500 
Sam El-Rahim  30,000  -  -  -  -  55,270  85,270 
               
Executive Directors:               
Ross Landles  263,100  -  -  -  -  217,032  480,132 
David Nolan *  219,200  -  -  -  -  217,032  436,232 
  594,800  -  22,500  -  -  706,366  1,323,666 
  
*  David Nolan was an executive director until 25 October 2021, after which he became a non-executive director. 
**  During the year, Ralph Stagg received 1,000,000 options over ordinary shares as approved by shareholders at the 31 

May 2021 AGM.  No expense has been recognised in relation to these options because it is not expected that the 
service condition will be met due to his resignation as a director in September 2021. 

***  Consulting fee of $22,500 have been received in relation to Geological services provided.  These have been charged 
at a rate $1,500 per day. 

  

 

 Short-term benefits Post-
employment 

benefits 

 Long-term 
benefits 

 Share-
based 

payments 

 

 
  (Cash)   (Cash)  (Cash)  (Cash)  (Cash)  (Non-cash)   

 
 
Cash salary 

 
Cash 

 
Non- 

 
Super- 

 Long 
service 

 
Equity- 

 
 

  and fees  bonus  monetary  annuation  leave  settled  Total 
2020  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 
               
Non-Executive Directors:               
Ralph Stagg  41,250  -  -  -  -  -  41,250 
Dr Andrew Stewart  26,250  -  -  -  -  52,365  78,615 
               
Executive Directors:               
Ross Landles  98,000  -  -  -  -  52,365  150,365 
David Nolan  98,750  -  -  -  -  52,365  151,115 
Patrick Treasure  4,064  -  -  -  -  -  4,064 
  268,314  -  -  -  -  157,095  425,409 
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The proportion of remuneration linked to performance and the fixed proportion are as follows: 
  

 
 Fixed remuneration 

(Cash) 
At risk - STI 
(Non-cash) 

At risk - LTI 
(Non-cash) 

Name  2021  2020  2021  2020  2021  2020 
             
Non-Executive Directors:             
Ralph Stagg  100%   100%   -  -  -  - 
Dr Andrew Stewart  24%   33%   -  -  76%   67%  
David Nolan *  100%   65%   -  -  -  35%  
Sam El-Rahim  35%   -  -  -  65%   - 
             
Executive Directors:             
Ross Landles  55%   65%   -  -  45%   35%  
David Nolan *  50%   65%   -  -  50%   35%  
Patrick Treasure  -  100%   -  -  -  - 
  
*  David Nolan was an executive director until 25 October 2021, after which he became a non-executive director. 
  
Service agreements 
Remuneration and other terms of employment for key management personnel are formalised in service agreements. Details 
of these agreements are as follows: 
  
Name:  Ross Landles 
Title:  Executive Director and Chairman 
Agreement commenced:  15 January 2021 
Term of agreement:  The Company will pay the relevant corporate entity $240,000 (exclusive of GST) per 

annum. The Company must also pay the relevant corporate entity an amount equal to 
any superannuation payable by that corporate entity to the Executive Director as a 
result of the engagement.  The agreement may be terminated by either party at any 
time by providing the other party with prior written notice of not less than the notice 
period of 12 months.  The agreement has no fixed term. 

  
Name:  Dr Andrew Stewart 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Agreement commenced:  25 January 2021 
Term of agreement:  Annual fees of $45,000 plus GST are payable.   
  
Name:  Sam El-Rahim 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Agreement commenced:  25 January 2021 
Term of agreement:  Annual fees of $45,000 plus GST are payable. 
  
Name:  David Nolan 
Title:  Non-Executive Director 
Agreement commenced:  25 October 2021 
Term of agreement:  Annual fees of $45,000 plus GST are payable. 
  
Name:  David Nolan 
Title:  Executive Director 
Agreement commenced:  15 January 2021 and ceased when became a non-executive director on 25 October 

2021 
Term of agreement:  The Company will pay the relevant corporate entity $240,000 (exclusive of GST) per 

annum. The Company must also pay the relevant corporate entity an amount equal to 
any superannuation payable by that corporate entity to the Executive Director as a 
result of the engagement.  The agreement may be terminated by either party at any 
time by providing the other part with prior written notice of not less than the notice period 
of 12 months.  The agreement has no fixed term. 

  
Key management personnel have no entitlement to termination payments in the event of removal for misconduct. 
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Share-based compensation 
 
Issue of shares 
There were no shares issued to directors and other key management personnel as part of compensation during the year 
ended 31 December 2021. 
  
Options 
The terms and conditions of each grant of options over ordinary shares affecting remuneration of directors and other key 
management personnel in this financial year or future reporting years are as follows: 
  
  Number of          Fair value 
  options    Vesting date and      per option 
Name  granted  Grant date  exercisable date  Expiry date  Exercise price  at grant date 
             
David Nolan  2,000,000  19 January 2021  19 January 2023  19 January 2024  $0.2500   $0.0429  
Ross Landles  2,000,000  19 January 2021  19 January 2023  19 January 2024  $0.2500   $0.0429  
Andrew Stewart  2,000,000  19 January 2021  19 January 2023  19 January 2024  $0.2500   $0.0429  
Ralph Stagg  1,000,000  31 May 2021  31 May 2022  31 May 2024  $0.3000   $0.0938  
Sam El-Rahim  1,000,000  31 May 2021  31 May 2022  31 May 2024  $0.3000   $0.0938  
  
Options granted carry no dividend or voting rights. 
  
For the above options to vest the director must remain a director 12 months after date of issue for the option to vest (Service 
Condition).  
  
Directors Share Loans 
  
During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ross Landles and entities associated with David Nolan and Andrew Stewart have 
been provided with interest bearing, limited recourse loans (Director Share Loans) from the Company for the sole purpose 
of acquiring shares in the Company on the same terms as other investors in the Company at the time. The Director Share 
Loans are required to be recognised as share-based remuneration and Equity Settled under AASB2 Share-Based Payment 
(AASB 2) The Director Share Loans represent an “in substance option” arrangement and have been valued using option 
pricing models. Details of the Directors Share Loans calculations are set out in note 32 . 
  
  
The number of options over ordinary shares granted to and vested by directors (as approved by shareholders at the 31 May 
2021 AGM) as part of compensation during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below: 
  
  Number of  Number of  Number of  Number of 
  options  options  options  options 
  granted  granted  vested  vested 
  during the  during the  during the  during the 
  year  year  year  year 
Name  2021  2020  2021  2020 
         
David Nolan   2,000,000  -  -  - 
Ross Landles   2,000,000  -  -  - 
Andrew Stewart   2,000,000  -  -  - 
Ralph Stagg  1,000,000  -  -  - 
Sam El-Rahim  1,000,000  -  -  - 
  
Performance rights 
There were 7,500,000 performance rights over ordinary shares issued to directors and other key management personnel as 
part of compensation that were outstanding as at 31 December 2021. 
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The number of performance rights over ordinary shares granted to and vested by directors (as approved by shareholders at 
the 31 May 2021 AGM) as part of compensation during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below: 
  
  Number of  Number of  Number of  Number of 
  rights  rights  rights  rights 
  granted  granted  vested  vested 
  during the  during the  during the  during the 
  year  year  year  year 
Name  2021  2020  2021  2020 
         
David Nolan  2,500,000  -  -  - 
Ross Landles  2,500,000  -  -  - 
Andrew Stewart  2,500,000  -  -  - 
  
The values of performance rights over ordinary shares granted, vested, and lapsed for directors as part of compensation 
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out below: 
  
  Value of  Value of  Value of  Remuneration 
  rights  rights  rights  consisting of 
  granted  vested  lapsed  rights 
  during the  during the  during the  for the 
  year  year  year  year 
Name  $  $  $  % 
         
David Nolan  176,383  -  -  40%  
Ross Landles  176,383  -  -  37%  
Andrew Stewart  176,383  -  -  62%  
  
During the current year 2,250.000 performance rights were granted to directors with the performance hurdle of two significant 
drill intercepts at the consolidated entity's projects.   
 
A further 5,250,000 performance rights were granted to directors with following performance hurdles:-  
  
●  Defined pre JORC* gold resource of 250,000 ounces; or 
●  Defined pre JORC* copper resource of 100,000 tonnes; or 
●  The sale of 100% interest in one of the consolidated entity's projects; or 
●  The consolidated entity entering into a project farm in or joint venture, that funds up to 50% of the pre-feasibility costs  

in relation to one of the group the projects; or 
●  The consolidated entity entering into a joint venture arrangement in relation to one of the consolidated entity's projects 

where the third party hold an interest of at least 30%. 
  
 * JORC means the Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves 

(‘the JORC Code’), a professional code of practice that sets minimum standards for Public Reporting of minerals 
Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. 

  
For the performance rights granted during the current financial year, the valuation model inputs used to determine the fair 
value at the grant date, are as follows: 
  
Tranche  Grant date  Expiry date  Share price  Exercise   Expected  Dividend  Risk free  Fair value 

 
 
 

 
 

 at grant 
date 

 
price 

 
volatility 

 
yield 

 
rate 

 at grant 
date 

          %    %   
                 
Tranche 1  31/05/2021  31/05/2024  $0.1950   $0.0000  95.00%   -  0.10%   $0.1290  
Tranche 2  31/05/2021  31/05/2024  $0.1950   $0.0000  95.00%   -  0.10%   $0.1070  
  
The performance rights have both a Service Condition and performance hurdles that both need to be met in order for them 
to be exercised. However, AASB2 requires these to be expensed over the period of the Service Condition i.e., over the 12-
mont period following grant, rather than over the vesting period i.e., a three-year period. 
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Additional information 
The earnings of the consolidated entity for the two years to 31 December 2021 are summarised below: 

2021 2020 
$ $ 

Loss after income tax (3,078,815)  (1,058,784) 

The factors that are considered to affect total shareholders return ('TSR') are summarised below: 

2021 2020 

Share price at financial year end ($) * 0.24 - 
Basic loss per share (cents per share) (4.27)  (5.18) 
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) (4.27)  (5.18) 

* Official quotation of the Company's ordinary shares on the ASX commenced on 16 March 2021.

Additional disclosures relating to key management personnel 

Shareholding 
The number of shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director , including their personally related 
parties and their associates in accordance with section 12(2)(c) of the Corporations Act and in which they have a relevant 
interest in accordance with section 608(1)(b) of the Corporations Act, is set out below: 

Balance at Received Balance at 
the start of as part of Disposals/ the end of 

the year remuneration Additions other the year 
Ordinary shares 
Ralph Stagg * 3,455,187 - - (3,455,187)  - 
Ross Landles 4,297,544 
David Nolan 3,750,000 
Andrew Stewart 3,837,544 
Sam El-Rahim 2,240,000

- 260,000
- 142,769
- 195,000
- 265,000

- 4,557,544
- 3,892,769
- 4,032,544
- 2,505,000

19,580,275 - 2,662,769  (3,455,187)  18,787,857

* Resigned 2 September 2021.

Option holding 
The number of options over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director and other 
members of key management personnel of the consolidated entity, including their personally related parties, is set out below: 

Balance at Expired/ Balance at 
the start of forfeited/ the end of 

the year Granted Exercised other the year 
Options over ordinary shares 
Ralph Stagg * - 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - 
Ross Landles - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 
David Nolan - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 
Dr Andrew Stewart - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 
Sam El-Rahim - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 

- 8,000,000 - (1,000,000) 7,000,000 

* Resigned 2 September 2021.
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Performance rights holding 
The number of performance rights over ordinary shares in the Company held during the financial year by each director and 
other members of key management personnel of the consolidated entity, including their personally related parties, is set out 
below: 
  
  Balance at       Expired/   Balance at  
  the start of       forfeited/   the end of  
  the year  Granted  Vested  other  the year 
Performance rights over ordinary shares           
David Nolan  -  2,500,000  -  -  2,500,000 
Ross Landles  -  2,500,000  -  -  2,500,000 
Andrew Stewart  -  2,500,000  -  -  2,500,000 
  -  7,500,000  -  -  7,500,000 
  
This concludes the remuneration report, which has been audited. 
  
Shares under option 
Unissued ordinary shares of Bastion Minerals Limited under option at the date of this report are as follows: 
  
    Exercise   Number  
Grant date  Expiry date  price  under option 
       
19 January 2021  19 January 2024  $0.2500   6,000,000 
11 March 2021  11 March 2024  $0.2500   1,477,562 
31 May 2021 *  31 May 2024  $0.3000   2,000,000 
15 November 2021  15 November 2024  $0.2500   5,000,000 
       
      14,477,562 
  
*  Includes 1,000,000 options which are still legally in existence but have been treated as forfeited for accounting purposes. 
  
No person entitled to exercise the options had or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any share issue of the 
Company or of any other body corporate. 
  
Director share loans 
  
During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ross Landles and entities associated with David Nolan and Andrew Stewart have 
been provided with interest bearing, limited recourse loans (‘Director Share Loans’) from the Company for the sole purpose 
of acquiring shares in the Company on the same terms as other investors in the Company at the time. The Director Share 
Loans are required to be recognised as share-based remuneration and Equity Settled under AASB2. The Director Share 
Loans represent an “in substance option” arrangement and have been valued using option pricing models. Details of the 
Directors Share Loans calculations are set out in note 32 
  
Shares under performance rights 
The company has a total of 7,500,00 performance rights on issue to directors only at 31 December 2021. 
  
Shares issued on the exercise of options 
There were no ordinary shares of Bastion Minerals Limited issued on the exercise of options during the year ended 31 
December 2021 and up to the date of this report. 
  
Shares issued on the exercise of performance rights 
There were no ordinary shares of Bastion Minerals Limited issued on the exercise of performance rights during the year 
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report. 
  
Indemnity and insurance of officers 
The Company has indemnified the directors and executives of the Company for costs incurred, in their capacity as a director 
or executive, for which they may be held personally liable, except where there is a lack of good faith. 
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During the financial year, the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the directors and executives of the 
Company against a liability to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of 
the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium. 

Indemnity and insurance of auditor 
The Company has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify the auditor of the 
Company or any related entity against a liability incurred by the auditor. 

During the financial year, the Company has not paid a premium in respect of a contract to insure the auditor of the Company 
or any related entity. 

Proceedings on behalf of the Company 
No person has applied to the Court under section 237 of the Corporations Act for leave to bring proceedings on behalf of the 
Company, or to intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on 
behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings. 

Non-audit services 
Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the financial year by the auditor 
are outlined in note 23 to the financial statements. 

The directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the financial year, by the auditor (or by another 
person or firm on the auditor's behalf), is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the 
Corporations Act. 

The directors are of the opinion that the services as disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements do not compromise the 
external auditor's independence requirements of the Corporations Act for the following reasons: 
● all non-audit services have been reviewed and approved to ensure that they do not impact the integrity and objectivity

of the auditor; and
● none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in APES 110 Code 

of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, including 
reviewing, or auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management or decision-making capacity for the Company, 
acting as advocate for the Company or jointly sharing economic risks and rewards.

Officers of the Company who are former partners of Ernst and Young 
There are no officers of the Company who are former partners of Ernst and Young. 

Auditor's independence declaration 
A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act is set out 
immediately after this directors' report. 

Auditor 
Ernst and Young continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations Act. 

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of directors, pursuant to section 298(2)(a) of the Corporations Act. 

On behalf of the directors 

___________________________ 
Ross Landles 

31 March 2022 
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Auditor’s independence declaration to the directors of Bastion Minerals 
Limited and its controlled entities  
 

As lead auditor for the audit of Bastion Minerals Limited for the financial year ended 31 December 
2021, I declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 
 

a. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 
relation to the audit;  
 

b. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit; and 
 

c. No non-audit services provided that contravene any applicable code of professional conduct in 
relation to the audit. 
 

This declaration is in respect of Bastion Minerals Limited and the entities it controlled during the 
financial year. 
 
 

 
Ernst & Young 
 
 

 
Scott Nichols 
Partner 
Sydney 
31 March 2022 
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Auditor’s independence declaration to the directors of Bastion Minerals 
Limited and its controlled entities  
 

As lead auditor for the audit of Bastion Minerals Limited for the financial year ended 31 December 
2021, I declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 
 

a. No contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in 
relation to the audit;  
 

b. No contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit; and 
 

c. No non-audit services provided that contravene any applicable code of professional conduct in 
relation to the audit. 
 

This declaration is in respect of Bastion Minerals Limited and the entities it controlled during the 
financial year. 
 
 

 
Ernst & Young 
 
 

 
Scott Nichols 
Partner 
Sydney 
31 March 2022 
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accompanying notes 
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Revenue       
Other income  5  40,500   405,756  
Interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method    150   46  
  
Expenses       
Consultancy fee expenses    (875,335)  (408,712) 
Legal and professional fees    (543,372)  (486,856) 
Administration expenses    (586,024)  (216,536) 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  6  (67,942)  (162) 
Travel and accommodation expense    (42,992)  -   
Share based payment expense  32  (818,223)  (157,095) 
Impairment expenses  13  (74,712)  (132,419) 
Other expenses    (38,633)  (16,251) 
Finance costs  6  (72,232)  (46,555) 
  
Loss before income tax expense    (3,078,815)  (1,058,784) 
  
Income tax expense  7  -    -   
  
Loss after income tax expense for the year attributable to the owners of 
Bastion Minerals Limited 

 
 

 
(3,078,815) 

 
(1,058,784) 

  
Other comprehensive loss       
       
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss       
Foreign currency translation    (60,877)  (104,547) 
       
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax    (60,877)  (104,547) 
       
Total comprehensive loss for the year attributable to the owners of Bastion 
Minerals Limited 

 
 

 
(3,139,692) 

 
(1,163,331) 

  
    Cents  Cents 
       
Basic loss per share  31  (4.27)  (5.18) 
Diluted loss per share  31  (4.27)  (5.18) 
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Assets       
       
Current assets       
Cash and cash equivalents  8  3,480,421   796,360  
Trade and other receivables  9  112,232   178,227  
Other  11  72,449   129,971  
Total current assets    3,665,102   1,104,558  
       
Non-current assets       
Property, plant, and equipment  12  98,805   6,868  
Right-of-use assets  10  1,065,700   -   
Exploration and evaluation  13  2,615,641   1,136,585  
Other  11  104,275   -   
Total non-current assets    3,884,421   1,143,453  
       
Total assets    7,549,523   2,248,011  
  
Liabilities       
       
Current liabilities       
Trade and other payables  14  207,338   397,841  
Borrowings  15  1,620   103,936  
Lease liabilities  16  98,478   -   
Employee benefits    15,940   -   
Total current liabilities    323,376   501,777  
       
Non-current liabilities       
Lease liabilities  16  926,683   -   
Provisions  17  24,799   -   
Total non-current liabilities    951,482   -   
       
Total liabilities    1,274,858   501,777  
  
Net assets    6,274,665   1,746,234  
  
Equity       
Issued capital  18  14,039,110   7,441,667  
Reserves  19  1,104,720   94,917  
Accumulated losses    (8,869,165)  (5,790,350) 
       
Total equity    6,274,665   1,746,234  
  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
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Issued 
 Foreign 

currency  
 Share  based 

payment 
 
Accumulated 

 

Total equity   capital  reserve  reserve  losses  
Consolidated  $  $  $  $  $ 
           
Balance at 1 January 2020  4,337,883  42,369  -  (4,731,566)  (351,314) 
           
Loss after income tax expense for the year  -  -  -  (1,058,784)  (1,058,784) 
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of 
tax 

 
- 

 
(104,547) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(104,547) 

           
Total comprehensive loss for the year  -  (104,547)  -  (1,058,784)  (1,163,331) 
           
Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Share-based payments (note 32)  -  -  157,095  -  157,095 
Contributions of equity (note 18  3,251,093  -  -  -  3,251,093 
Transaction costs (note 18)  (147,309)  -  -  -  (147,309) 
           
Balance at 31 December 2020  7,441,667  (62,178)  157,095  (5,790,350)  1,746,234 
  

 
 

Issued 
 Foreign 

currency 
 Share based 

payment  
 
Accumulated 

 

Total equity   capital  reserve  reserve  losses   
Consolidated  $  $  $  $  $ 
           
Balance at 1 January 2021  7,441,667  (62,178)  157,095  (5,790,350)  1,746,234 
           
Loss after income tax expense for the year  -  -  -  (3,078,815)  (3,078,815) 
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of 
tax 

 
- 

 
(60,877) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(60,877) 

           
Total comprehensive loss for the year  -  (60,877)  -  (3,078,815)  (3,139,692) 
           
Transactions with owners in their capacity as 
owners: 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Share-based payments (note 32)  -  -  1,070,680  -  1,070,680 
Contributions of equity,  (note 18)  7,300,000  -  -  -  7,300,000 
Transactions costs (note 18)  (702,557)  -  -  -  (702,557) 
           
Balance at 31 December 2021  14,039,110  (123,055)  1,227,775  (8,869,165)  6,274,665 
  

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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    Consolidated 
  Note  2021  2020 
    $  $ 
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Cash flows from operating activities       
Royalty received    100,602   119,733  
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST)    (2,347,319)  (889,761) 
Interest received    150   45  
Other revenue    40,500   -   
Interest and other finance costs paid    (72,232)  -   
Payment for security deposits    (141,695)  -   
       
Net cash used in operating activities  29  (2,419,994)  (769,983) 
  
Cash flows from investing activities       
Payments for property, plant, and equipment  12  (114,897)  (7,030) 
Payments for exploration and evaluation    (1,471,332)  (94,050) 
       
Net cash used in investing activities    (1,586,229)  (101,080) 
  
Cash flows from financing activities       
Proceeds from issue of shares  18  7,300,000   1,762,500  
Share issue transaction costs    (472,626)  (123,309) 
Repayment of borrowings    (102,103)  (50,446) 
Repayment of lease liabilities    (23,302)  -   
       
Net cash from financing activities    6,701,969   1,588,745  
  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    2,695,746   717,682  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year    794,527   76,845  
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents    (11,472)  -   
       
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year  8  3,478,801   794,527  
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Note 1. Significant accounting policies 
  
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies 
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
  
New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted 
The consolidated entity has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are mandatory for the current reporting period.  The impact of their 
adoption has not been material. 
  
Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted. 
  
Going concern 
The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal business 
activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities in the ordinary course of business. The consolidated entity 
incurred a loss from ordinary activities of $3,078,815 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: $1,058,784) and had 
negative cash flows from operating activities of $2,419,994 (2020: $769,983). 
  
The directors have reviewed the cashflow forecasts and believe that there are reasonable grounds to believe that the 
consolidated entity will be able to continue as a going concern due to the following factors: 
  
●  the consolidated entity continues to proactively manage operating and exploration costs and cash flow requirements in 

line with available resources; and  
●  the Company has the ability to raise additional capital under its general placement capacity.  The Board is confident 

that the Company will be able to raise additional capital as and when needed. 
  
Accordingly, the directors believe that the consolidated entity will be able to continue as a going concern and that it is 
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in the preparation of the financial report. In the event that the consolidated 
entity is unsuccessful in implementing the above-stated initiatives, a material uncertainty exists, that may cast significant 
doubt on the consolidated entity's ability to continue as a going concern and its ability to recover assets and discharge 
liabilities in normal course of business and at the amounts shown in the financial report. 
  
The financial report does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset 
amounts or to the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessarily incurred should the company not continue 
as a going concern.   
  
Comparatives 
When required, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial 
period. 
  
Basis of preparation 
These general-purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations issued by the 'AASB and the Corporations Act , as appropriate for for-profit oriented entities. These financial 
statements also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB). 
  
Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. 
  
Critical accounting estimates 
The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires 
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the consolidated entity's accounting policies. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
financial statements, are disclosed in note 2. 
  
Parent entity information 
In accordance with the Corporations Act, these financial statements present the results of the consolidated entity only. 
Supplementary information about the parent entity is disclosed in note 26. 
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Principles of consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all subsidiaries of Bastion Minerals Limited 
(Company or parent entity) as at 31 December 2021 and the results of all subsidiaries for the year then ended. Bastion 
Minerals Limited and its subsidiaries together are referred to in these financial statements as the 'consolidated entity'. 
  
Subsidiaries are all those entities over which the consolidated entity has control. The consolidated entity controls an entity 
when the consolidated entity is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the 
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from 
the date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entity. They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases. 
  
Intercompany transactions, balances, and unrealised gains on transactions between entities in the consolidated entity are 
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of the impairment of the asset 
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies 
adopted by the consolidated entity. 
  
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting. A change in ownership interest, 
without the loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, where the difference between the consideration 
transferred and the book value of the share of the non-controlling interest acquired is recognised directly in equity attributable 
to the parent. 
  
Where the consolidated entity loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets including goodwill, liabilities, and 
non-controlling interest in the subsidiary together with any cumulative translation differences recognised in equity. The 
consolidated entity recognises the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any investment retained 
together with any gain or loss in profit or loss. 
  
Operating segments 
Operating segments are presented using the 'management approach', where the information presented is on the same basis 
as the internal reports provided to the Chief Operating Decision Makers (CODM). The CODM is responsible for the allocation 
of resources to operating segments and assessing their performance. 
  
Foreign currency translation 
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is Bastion Minerals Limited's functional and presentation 
currency. 
  
Foreign currency transactions 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation 
at financial year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in 
profit or loss. 
  
Foreign operations 
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars using the exchange rates at the reporting 
date. The revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated into Australian dollars using the average exchange 
rates, which approximate the rates at the dates of the transactions, for the period. All resulting foreign exchange differences 
are recognised in other comprehensive income through the foreign currency reserve in equity. 
  
The foreign currency reserve is recognised in profit or loss when the foreign operation or net investment is disposed of. 
  
Revenue recognition 
The consolidated entity recognises revenue as follows: 
  
Interest 
Interest revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method.  
  
Sub-lease revenue 
Sub-lease revenue is accounted for as an operating lease and recognised when it is received or when the right to receive 
payment is established. 
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Income tax 
The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on that period's taxable income based on the applicable 
income tax rate for each jurisdiction, adjusted by the changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary 
differences, unused tax losses and the adjustment recognised for prior periods, where applicable. 
  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to be applied when the 
assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates that are enacted or substantively enacted, except for: 
●  when the deferred income tax asset or liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 

transaction that is not a business combination and that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting nor 
taxable profits; or 

●  when the taxable temporary difference is associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, and the 
timing of the reversal can be controlled, and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future. 

  
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that 
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses. 
  
The carrying amount of recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date. Deferred tax 
assets recognised are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that future taxable profits will be available for the 
carrying amount to be recovered. Previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable 
that there are future taxable profits available to recover the asset. 
  
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities; and they relate to the same taxable authority on 
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend to settle simultaneously. 
  
Current and non-current classification 
Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification. 
  
An asset is classified as current when: (a) it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the 
consolidated entity's normal operating cycle; (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; (c) it is expected to be realised 
within 12 months after the reporting period; or (d) the asset is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged 
or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 
  
A liability is classified as current when: (a) it is either expected to be settled in the consolidated entity's normal operating 
cycle; (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; (c) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; 
or (d) there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All 
other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
  
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the statement of cash flows presentation purposes, cash 
and cash equivalents also includes bank overdrafts, which are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement 
of financial position. 
  
Trade and other receivables 
Other receivables are recognised at amortised cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses. 
  
Property, plant, and equipment 
Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes 
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 
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Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the net cost of each item of property, plant, and equipment 
(excluding land) over their expected useful lives as follows: 
  
Office equipment  5 years 
Leasehold improvements  6 years 
Plant and equipment  6 years 
  
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. 
  
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the assets, 
whichever is shorter. 
  
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when there is no future economic benefit to the 
consolidated entity. Gains and losses between the carrying amount and the disposal proceeds are taken to profit or loss. 
  
Right-of-use assets 
A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the 
cost of inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, and 
restoring the site or asset. 
  
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful 
life of the asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the consolidated entity expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at 
the end of the lease term, the depreciation is over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or 
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. 
  
The consolidated entity has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term 
leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are expensed to 
profit or loss as incurred. 
  
Exploration and evaluation assets 
Exploration and evaluation expenditure in relation to separate areas of interest for which rights of tenure are current is carried 
forward as an asset in the statement of financial position where it is expected that the expenditure will be recovered through 
the successful development and exploitation of an area of interest, or by its sale; or exploration activities are continuing in 
an area and activities have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable estimate of the existence or otherwise of 
economically recoverable reserves. Where a project or an area of interest has been abandoned, the expenditure incurred 
thereon is written off in the period in which the decision is made. 
  
Impairment of non-financial assets 
Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount. 
  
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-use is the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset using a pre-tax discount rate specific to the asset or 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Assets that do not have independent cash flows are grouped together to 
form a cash-generating unit. 
  
Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the financial 
year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature, they are measured at amortised cost and are not discounted. The 
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
  
Borrowings 
Loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
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A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss. Where the consolidated entity renegotiates the terms of a financial liability with the result that it issues equity 
instruments to the  creditor to extinguish all or part of the financial liability, if the creditor is a direct or indirect shareholder 
and acting in its capacity as a direct or indirect existing shareholder, the consolidated entity records the equity instruments 
issued at the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished with no profit or loss recognised. 
  
Lease liabilities 
A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present 
value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, 
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the consolidated entity's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of 
fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts 
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is 
reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on 
an index or a rate are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 
  
The carrying amounts are remeasured if there is a change in the following: (a) future lease payments arising from a change 
in an index, or a rate used; (b) residual guarantee; (c) lease term; and (d) certainty of a purchase option and termination 
penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or 
loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down. 
  
Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the consolidated entity has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of a past 
event, it is probable the consolidated entity will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to 
settle the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 
If the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate specific to the liability. The 
increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. 
  
Employee benefits 
  
Short-term employee benefits 
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave expected to be 
settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled. 
  
Share-based payments 
Equity-settled and cash-settled share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees. 
  
Equity-settled transactions are awards of shares, or options over shares, that are provided to employees in exchange for the 
rendering of services. Cash-settled transactions are awards of cash for the exchange of services, where the amount of cash 
is determined by reference to the share price. 
  
The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured at fair value on grant date. Fair value is independently determined using 
either the Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model that takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, 
the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend 
yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option, together with non-vesting conditions that do not determine 
whether the consolidated entity receives the services that entitle the employees to receive payment. No account is taken of 
any other vesting conditions. 
  
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting 
period. The cumulative charge to profit or loss is calculated based on the grant date fair value of the award, the best estimate 
of the number of awards that are likely to vest and the expired portion of the vesting period. The amount recognised in profit 
or loss for the period is the cumulative amount calculated at each reporting date less amounts already recognised in previous 
periods. 
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The cost of cash-settled transactions is initially, and at each reporting date until vested, determined by applying either the 
Binomial or Black-Scholes option pricing model, taking into consideration the terms and conditions on which the award was 
granted. The cumulative charge to profit or loss until settlement of the liability is calculated as follows: 
●  during the vesting period, the liability at each reporting date is the fair value of the award at that date multiplied by the 

expired portion of the vesting period; and 
●  from the end of the vesting period until settlement of the award, the liability is the full fair value of the liability at the 

reporting date. 
  
All changes in the liability are recognised in profit or loss. The ultimate cost of cash-settled transactions is the cash paid to 
settle the liability. 
  
Market conditions are taken into consideration in determining fair value. Therefore, any awards subject to market conditions 
are considered to vest irrespective of whether or not that market condition has been met, provided all other conditions are 
satisfied. 
  
If equity-settled awards are modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the modification has not been made. An 
additional expense is recognised, over the remaining vesting period, for any modification that increases the total fair value 
of the share-based compensation benefit as at the date of modification. 
  
If the non-vesting condition is within the control of the consolidated entity or employee, the failure to satisfy the condition is 
treated as a cancellation. If the condition is not within the control of the consolidated entity or employee and is not satisfied 
during the vesting period, any remaining expense for the award is recognised over the remaining vesting period, unless the 
award is forfeited. 
  
If equity-settled awards are cancelled, it is treated as if it has vested on the date of cancellation, and any remaining expense 
is recognised immediately. If a new replacement award is substituted for the cancelled award, the cancelled and new award 
is treated as if they were a modification. 
  
Certain directors have been issued shares with interest bearing, limited recourse loans from the consolidated entity for the 
sole purpose of acquiring shares in the Company. Under AASB 2 Share-Based Payments, these shares and loans are 
treated as “in substance options” even where the equity instrument itself is not a share option. 
  
Issued capital 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. 
  
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, 
from the proceeds. 
  
Earnings per share 
  
Basic earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the owners of Bastion Minerals Limited, excluding 
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during the financial year. 
  
Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the 
after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted 
average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
  
Goods and Services Tax ('GST') and other similar taxes 
Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the tax authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of the acquisition of the asset or as part of 
the expense. 
  
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST 
recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority is included in other receivables or other payables in the statement of 
financial position. 
  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



2021 ANNUAL REPORT  |   37   

Bastion Minerals Limited 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2021 
 

  
Note 1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

  

  
30 

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities 
which are recoverable from, or payable to the tax authority, are presented as operating cash flows. 
  
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authority. 
  
New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted 
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet mandatory, 
have not been early adopted by the consolidated entity for the annual reporting period ended 31 December 2021. The 
consolidated entity does believe that the impact of the new standards will be material. 
  
Note 2. Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 
  
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in 
relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue, and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and 
assumptions on historical experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, management 
believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal 
the related actual results. The judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next financial year are 
discussed below. 
  
Share-based payment transactions 
The consolidated entity measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the 
equity instruments at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by using either the Binomial or Black-
Scholes model taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the instruments were granted. The accounting 
estimates and assumptions relating to equity-settled share-based payments would have no impact on the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next annual reporting period but may impact profit or loss and equity. 
  
The company listed during the current year.  The volatility used in the option valuations was calculated with reference to 
similar listed junior exploration companies. 
  
Estimation of useful lives of assets 
The consolidated entity determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its 
property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of 
technical innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are 
less than previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will 
be written off or written down. 
  
Lease term 
The lease term is a significant component in the measurement of both the right-of-use asset and lease liability. Judgement 
is exercised in determining whether there is reasonable certainty that an option to extend the lease or purchase the underlying 
asset will be exercised, or an option to terminate the lease will not be exercised, when ascertaining the periods to be included 
in the lease term. In determining the lease term, all facts and circumstances that create an economical incentive to exercise 
an extension option, or not to exercise a termination option, are considered at the lease commencement date. Factors 
considered may include the importance of the asset to the consolidated entity's operations; comparison of terms and 
conditions to prevailing market rates; incurrence of significant penalties; existence of significant leasehold improvements; 
and the costs and disruption to replace the asset. The consolidated entity reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to 
exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option, if there is a significant event or significant change in 
circumstances. 
  
Incremental borrowing rate 
Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate is estimated to discount 
future lease payments to measure the present value of the lease liability at the lease commencement date. Such a rate is 
based on what the consolidated entity estimates it would have to pay a third party to borrow the funds necessary to obtain 
an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset, with similar terms, security, and economic environment. 
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Lease make good provision 
A provision has been made for the present value of anticipated costs for future restoration of leased premises. The provision 
includes future cost estimates associated with closure of the premises. The calculation of this provision requires assumptions 
such as application of closure dates and cost estimates. The provision recognised for each site is periodically reviewed and 
updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the time. Changes to the estimated future costs for sites are 
recognised in the statement of financial position by adjusting the asset and the provision. Reductions in the provision that 
exceed the carrying amount of the asset will be recognised in profit or loss. 
  
Exploration and evaluation costs 
Exploration and evaluation costs have been capitalised on the basis that the consolidated entity will commence commercial 
production in the future, from which time the costs will be amortised in proportion to the depletion of the mineral resources. 
Key judgements are applied in considering costs to be capitalised which includes determining expenditures directly related 
to these activities and allocating overheads between those that are expensed and capitalised. In addition, costs are only 
capitalised that  are expected to be recovered either through successful development or sale of the relevant mining interest. 
Factors that could impact the future commercial production at the mine include the level of reserves and resources, future 
technology changes,  which could impact the cost of mining, future legal changes, and changes in commodity prices. To the 
extent that capitalised costs are determined not to be recoverable in the future, they will be written off in the period in which 
this determination is made. 
  
Note 3. Impact of COVID 19 pandemic 
  
The World Health Organisation declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a pandemic in March 2020. However, the impact of the 
pandemic is ongoing, and it is not practicable to estimate the potential impact, positive or negative, after the reporting date. 
The situation is rapidly developing and is dependent on measures imposed by the Australian Government and other 
countries, such as maintaining social distancing requirements, lockdowns, quarantines, travel restrictions, the rollout of 
vaccines and any economic stimulus that may be provided. 
  
The financial statements have been prepared based upon conditions existing at 31 December 2021 and considering those 
events occurring subsequent to that date, that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period.  
  
Note 4. Operating segments 
  
Identification of reportable operating segments 
The consolidated entity is organised into one operating segment, being the exploration and subsequent development of, 
gold, silver, and copper in Chile. This is based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the Board of Directors 
(who are identified as the CODM) in assessing performance and in determining the allocation of resources. 
  
Note 5. Other income 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Net foreign exchange gain  -    5,750  
Net fair value gain on investments  -    178,719  
Other income  40,500   221,287  
     
Other income  40,500   405,756  
  
Other income in current year relates to sub-lease income, refer to note 10. 
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Note 6. Expenses 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Loss before income tax includes the following specific expenses:     
     
Depreciation     
Plant and equipment  (22,960)  (162) 
Buildings right-of-use assets  (44,982)  -   
     
Total depreciation  (67,942)  (162) 
     
Finance costs     
Interest and finance charges paid/payable on loan with Malema Pty Ltd (an entity related to 
Ralph Stagg) 

 
43,426  

 
46,555  

Interest and finance charges paid/payable on leases  14,310   -   
Interest on insurance premium finance  14,496   -   
     
Finance costs expensed  72,232   46,555  
  
Note 7. Income tax expense 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense and tax at the statutory rate     
Loss before income tax expense  (3,078,815)  (1,058,784) 
     
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 30%  (923,645)  (317,635) 
     
Tax effect amounts which are not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:     

Permanent and temporary differences  470,830   268,970  
     
  (452,815)  (48,665) 
Current year tax losses not recognised  452,815   48,665  
     
Income tax expense  -    -   
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Tax losses not recognised     
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised  4,100,275   2,590,890  
     
Potential tax benefit @ 30%  1,230,083   777,267  
  
The above potential tax benefit for tax losses has not been recognised in the statement of financial position. These tax losses 
can only be utilised in the future if the continuity of ownership test is passed, or failing that, the same business test is passed. 
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Note 8. Cash and cash equivalents 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Current assets     
Cash at bank  3,480,421   796,360  
     
Reconciliation to cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year     
The above figures are reconciled to cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial 
year as shown in the statement of cash flows as follows: 

 
 
 

 
     
Balances as above  3,480,421   796,360  
Bank overdraft (note 15)  (1,620)  (1,833) 
     
Balance as per statement of cash flows  3,478,801   794,527  
  
Note 9. Trade and other receivables 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Current assets     
Other receivables  65,724   103,504  
BAS receivable  46,508   74,723  
     
  112,232   178,227  
  
Note 10. Right-of-use assets 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Non-current assets     
Land and buildings - right-of-use  1,110,682   -   
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (44,982)  -   
     
  1,065,700   -   
  
During the year, $40,500 of sub-lease income was received during the year ending 31 December 2021.  The company 
entered into subleases from 1 October 2021 with a 3-year term with monthly payments of $9,000. 
  
The consolidated entity's lease is of land and buildings for its office in Sydney, with a 3-year term and an option to extend for 
further three years.  
  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



2021 ANNUAL REPORT  |   41   

Bastion Minerals Limited 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2021 
 

  
Note 10. Right-of-use assets (continued) 
 

  

  
34 

Reconciliations 
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out 
below: 
  
  Land and  
  buildings 
Consolidated  $ 
   
Balance at 1 January 2020  - 
   
Balance at 31 December 2020  - 
Additions  1,048,463 
Discount on security deposits  37,420 
Recognition of make good provision  24,799 
Depreciation expense  (44,982) 
   
Balance at 31 December 2021  1,065,700 
  
Note 11. Other 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Current assets     
Prepayments  72,449   122,051  
Other current assets  -    7,920  
     
  72,449   129,971  
     
Non-current assets     
Security deposits  104,275   -   
  
Note 12. Property, plant, and equipment 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Non-current assets     
Leasehold improvements - at cost  83,552   -   
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (4,120)  -   
  79,432   -   
     
Plant and equipment - at cost  17,109   7,030  
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (17,109)  (162) 
  -    6,868  
     
Office equipment - at cost  21,266   -   
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (1,893)  -   
  19,373   -   
     
  98,805   6,868  
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Reconciliations 
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out 
below: 
  
  Office  Leasehold  Plant and    
  equipment  improvements  equipment  Total 
Consolidated  $  $  $  $ 
         
Balance at 1 January 2020  -  -  -  - 
Additions  -  -  7,030  7,030 
Depreciation expense  -  -  (162)  (162) 
         
Balance at 31 December 2020  -  -  6,868  6,868 
Additions  21,266  83,552  10,079  114,897 
Depreciation expense  (1,893)  (4,120)  (16,947)  (22,960) 
         
Balance at 31 December 2021  19,373  79,432  -  98,805 
  
Note 13. Exploration and evaluation 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Non-current assets     
Exploration and evaluation - at cost  2,615,641   1,136,585  
  
Reconciliations 
Reconciliations of the written down values at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial year are set out 
below: 
  
  Exploration & 
  Evaluation 
Consolidated  $ 
   
Balance at 1 January 2020  1,209,901 
Additions  94,050 
Exchange differences  (34,947) 
Impairment of assets  (132,419) 
   
Balance at 31 December 2020  1,136,585 
Additions  1,684,874 
Exchange differences  (131,106) 
Impairment of assets  (74,712) 
   
Balance at 31 December 2021  2,615,641 
  
During the year, the consolidated entity entered into a Binding Framework Agreement for the execution of a Mining Purchase 
Option Contract with Sociedad Minera del Norte (SMDN) to enter into an Option to acquire 100% of the San Juan Gold 
Project and surrounding licences within the Capote Mining District in the Mineral-rich Atacama Region of Chile. 
  
The impairment expense relates to the payment of an option over a tenement purchase that did not go ahead. 
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Note 14. Trade and other payables 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Current liabilities     
Trade payables  117,009   216,528  
Other payables and accrued expenses  90,329   181,313  
     
  207,338   397,841  
  
Refer to note 21 for further information on financial instruments. 
  
Note 15. Borrowings 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Current liabilities     
Bank overdraft  1,620   1,833  
Loan - cash settlements  -    102,103  
     
  1,620   103,936  
  
Refer to note 21 for further information on financial instruments. 
  
The loan - cash settlements represented the total royalty payments of CAD 100,000 outstanding under the Malema Loan 
Deed at the end of the financial year and the date of this report.  This was repaid in full during the current financial year. 
  
Note 16. Lease liabilities 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Current liabilities     
Lease liability  98,478   -   
     
Non-current liabilities     
Lease liability  926,683   -   
  
Refer to note 21 for further information on financial instruments. 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Reconciliations of the value of lease liabilities values at the beginning and end of the current 
and previous financial year are set out below: 

 
 
 

 
Additions  1,048,463   -   
Repayments  (37,612)  -   
Interest expense  14,310   -   
     
  1,025,161   -   
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Note 17. Provisions 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Non-current liabilities     
Lease make good  24,799   -   
  
Note 18. Issued capital 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020  2021  2020 
  Shares  Shares  $  $ 
         
Ordinary shares - fully paid  84,878,076  47,878,076  14,039,110   7,441,667  
  
Movements in ordinary share capital 
  
Details  Date  Shares  Issue price  $ 
         
Balance  1 January 2020  68,522,865    4,337,883 
Share settlement with Karton  3 June 2020  928,125  $0.0800   57,578 
Share settlement with Malema  30 June 2020  3,550,747  $0.1000   355,075 
Balance of Malema Loan extinguished  30 June 2020  -  $0.0000  951,940 
Consolidation 2:1  28 September 2020  (36,500,863)  $0.0000  - 
Share issue  17 November 2020  23,250,000  $0.0500   1,162,500 
Share issue in lieu of fees  17 November 2020  2,480,000  $0.0500   124,000 
Share Issue  17 November 2020  21,525,261  $0.0500   - 
Consolidation 2:1  14 December 2020  (41,878,059)  $0.0000  - 
Share Issue  31 December 2020  6,000,000  $0.1000   600,000 
Less cost of capital    -  $0.0000  (147,309) 
         
Balance  31 December 2020  47,878,076    7,441,667 
Share issue  20 January 2021  1,000,000  $0.1000   100,000 
Share issue - initial public offering  12 March 2021  25,000,000  $0.2000   5,000,000 
Share issue  20 September 2021  11,000,000  $0.2000   2,200,000 
Less cost of capital    -  $0.0000  (702,557) 
         
Balance  31 December 2021  84,878,076    14,039,110 
  
Ordinary shares 
Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on the winding up of the Company in proportion 
to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held. The fully paid ordinary shares have no par value and the Company 
does not have a limited amount of authorised capital. 
  
On a show of hands every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy shall have one vote and upon a poll each 
share shall have one vote. 
  
Share buy-back 
There is no current on-market share buy-back. 
  
Capital risk management 
The consolidated entity's objectives when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that 
it can provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimum capital structure to 
reduce the cost of capital. 
  
Capital is regarded as total equity, as recognised in the statement of financial position, plus net debt. Net debt is calculated 
as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 
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In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the consolidated entity may adjust the amount of dividends paid to 
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 
  
The consolidated entity would look to raise capital when an opportunity to invest in a business or company was seen as 
value adding relative to the current Company's share price at the time of the investment. The consolidated entity is not 
actively pursuing additional investments in the short term as it continues to integrate and grow its existing businesses in 
order to maximise synergies. 
  
The consolidated entity is subject to certain financing arrangements covenants and meeting these is given priority in all 
capital risk management decisions. There have been no events of default on the financing arrangements during the financial 
year. 
  
The capital risk management policy remains unchanged from the 31 December 2020 Annual Report. 
  
Note 19. Reserves 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Foreign currency reserve  (123,055)  (62,178) 
Share-based payments reserve  1,227,775   157,095  
     
  1,104,720   94,917  
  
Foreign currency reserve 
The reserve is used to recognise exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign 
operations to Australian dollars. 
  
Share-based payments reserve 
The reserve is used to recognise the value of equity benefits provided to employees and directors as part of their 
remuneration, and other parties as part of their compensation for services. 
  
Movements in reserves 
Movements in each class of reserve during the current and previous financial year are set out below: 
  
  Foreign  Share based   
  currency  payments  Total 
Consolidated  $  $  $ 
       
Balance at 1 January 2020  -  -  - 
Foreign currency translation  (62,178)  -  (62,178) 
Share based payments  -  157,095  157,095 
       
Balance at 31 December 2020  (62,178)  157,095  94,917 
Foreign currency translation  (60,877)  -  (60,877) 
Share based payments  -  1,070,680  1,070,680 
       
Balance at 31 December 2021  (123,055)  1,227,775  1,104,720 
  
Note 20. Dividends 
  
There were no dividends paid, recommended, or declared during the current or previous financial year. 
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Note 21. Financial instruments 
  
Financial risk management objectives 
The consolidated entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk, price 
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The consolidated entity's overall risk management program focuses 
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of 
the consolidated entity.  
  
Risk management is carried out by the Board. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure of the 
consolidated entity and appropriate procedures, controls, and risk limits. 
  
   
  
Market risk 
  
Foreign currency risk 
The consolidated entity undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currency and is exposed to foreign currency 
risk through foreign exchange rate fluctuations. 
  
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets and financial liabilities 
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis and 
cash flow forecasting. 
  
The carrying amount of the consolidated entity's foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities at the 
reporting date were as follows: 
  
  Assets Liabilities 
  2021  2020  2021  2020 
Consolidated  $  $  $  $ 
         
Canadian dollars  -  -  -  102,103 
Chilean peso  179,364  94,894  155,805  34,286 
         
  179,364  94,894  155,805  136,389 
  
  AUD strengthened AUD weakened 

Consolidated - 2021 

 

% change 

 Effect on 
profit before 

tax 

 
Effect on 

equity 

 

% change 

 Effect on 
profit before 

tax 

 
Effect on 

equity 
             
Chilean peso  10%   -  2,533  10%   -  (2,533) 
  
  AUD strengthened AUD weakened 

Consolidated - 2020 

 

% change 

 Effect on 
profit before 

tax 

 
Effect on 

equity 

 

% change 

 Effect on 
profit before 

tax 

 
Effect on 

equity 
             
Chilean peso  10%   -  (6,060)  10%   -  6,060 
Canadian dollars  10%   -  (10,210)  10%   -  10,210 
             
    -  (16,270)    -  16,270 
  
Price risk 
The consolidated entity is not exposed to any significant price risk. 
  
Interest rate risk 
The consolidated entity is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk. 
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Credit risk 
The consolidated entity is not exposed to any significant credit risk. 
  
Liquidity risk 
Vigilant liquidity risk management requires the consolidated entity to maintain sufficient liquid assets (mainly cash and cash 
equivalents) and available borrowing facilities to be able to pay debts as and when they become due and payable. 
  
The consolidated entity manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves and available borrowing facilities by 
continuously monitoring actual and forecast cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 
  
Remaining contractual maturities 
The following tables detail the consolidated entity's remaining contractual maturity for its financial instrument liabilities. The 
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which 
the financial liabilities are required to be paid. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows disclosed as remaining 
contractual maturities and therefore these totals may differ from their carrying amount in the statement of financial position. 
  

 

 Weighted 
average 

interest rate 

 

1 year or less 

 
Between 1 
and 2 years 

 
Between 2 
and 5 years 

 

Over 5 years 

 Remaining 
contractual 
maturities 

Consolidated - 2021  %  $  $  $  $  $ 
             
Non-derivatives             
Non-interest bearing             
Trade and other payables  -  207,338  -  -  -  207,338 
             
Interest-bearing - fixed rate             
Bank overdraft  -  1,620  -  -  -  1,620 
Lease liability  5.50%   152,444  160,492  707,019  203,053  1,223,008 
Total non-derivatives    361,402  160,492  707,019  203,053  1,431,966 
  

 

 Weighted 
average 

interest rate 

 

1 year or less 

 
Between 1 
and 2 years 

 
Between 2 
and 5 years 

 

Over 5 years 

 Remaining 
contractual 
maturities 

Consolidated - 2020  %  $  $  $  $  $ 
             
Non-derivatives             
Non-interest bearing             
Trade other payables  -  397,841  -  -  -  397,841 
             
Interest-bearing - fixed rate             
Bank overdraft  -  1,833  -  -  -  1,833 
Loan cash settlement  5.50%   102,103  -  -  -  102,103 
Total non-derivatives    501,777  -  -  -  501,777 
  
The cash flows in the maturity analysis above are not expected to occur significantly earlier than contractually disclosed 
above. 
  
Fair value of financial instruments 
Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value. 
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Note 22. Key management personnel disclosures 
  
Compensation 
The aggregate compensation made to directors and other members of key management personnel of the consolidated entity 
is set out below: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Short-term employee benefits  617,300   268,314  
Share-based payments  706,366   157,095  
     
  1,323,666   425,409  
  
Note 23. Remuneration of auditors 
  
During the financial year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by Ernst and Young Australia, the 
auditor of the Company, and its network firms: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Audit services - Ernst and Young Australia     
Audit or review of the financial statements  77,000   73,600  
     
Other services - Ernst and Young Australia     
Investigating accountant's report  -    60,000  
     
  77,000   133,600  
     
Audit services - member firms of Ernst and Young Australia     
Audit or review of the financial statements  20,000   21,400  
  
Note 24. Contingent liabilities 
  
During the year, the Company agreed to issue 2,500,000 options to a consultant for services rendered. The Company 
subsequently communicated that the options will not be issued as a result of the level of services provided by the contractor. 
  
The consolidated entity had no other contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020. 
  
Note 25. Related party transactions 
  
Parent entity 
Bastion Minerals Limited is the parent entity. 
  
Subsidiaries 
Interests in subsidiaries are set out in note 27. 
  
Key management personnel 
Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 22 and the remuneration report included in the 
directors' report. 
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Transactions with related parties 
The following transactions occurred with related parties: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Payment for other expenses:     
Interest paid to Malema Pty Ltd (an entity related to Ralph Stagg)   27,002   46,555  
  
Receivable from and payable to related parties 
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Current payables:     
Trade payable to Project Gioscience Pty Ltd (an entity related to Ralph Stagg)   -    4,125  
Trade payable to Project Asyana Pty Ltd (an entity related to David Nolan)  -    875  
Trade payable to AL Stewart Family Pty Ltd (an entity related to Andrew Stewart)  11,175   -   
  
Loans to/from related parties 
The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to loans with related parties: 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Current borrowings:     
Cash payment loan from Malema Pty Ltd (an entity related to Ralph Stagg).  Refer to note 
15. 

 
-   

 
102,103  

  
During the year ended 31 December 2020, Ross Landles and entities associated with David Nolan and Andrew Stewart have 
been provided with interest bearing, limited recourse loans (‘Director Share Loans’) from the Company for the sole purpose 
of acquiring shares in the Company on the same terms as other investors who invested in the Company at the time. The 
Director Share Loans are required to be recognized as share-based remuneration and Equity Settled under AASB2. The 
Director Share Loans represent an “in substance option” arrangement and have been valued using option pricing models. 
Details of the Directors Share Loans calculations are set out in note 32. 
  
Note 26. Parent entity information 
  
Set out below is the supplementary information about the parent entity. 
  
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
  
  Parent 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Loss after income tax  (3,139,692)  (1,163,331) 
     
Total comprehensive loss  (3,139,692)  (1,163,331) 
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Statement of financial position 
  
  Parent 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Total current assets  3,454,921   956,898  
     
Total assets  7,482,674   2,213,725  
     
Total current liabilities  256,527   467,792  
     
Total liabilities  1,208,009   467,792  
     
Equity     

Issued capital  14,039,110   7,441,667  
Share-based payments reserve  1,227,775   157,095  
Accumulated losses  (8,992,220)  (5,852,829) 

     
Total equity  6,274,665   1,745,933  
  
Guarantees entered into by the parent entity in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries 
The parent entity had no guarantees in relation to the debts of its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 
2020. 
  
Contingent liabilities 
The parent entity had no contingent liabilities as at as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020. 
  
Capital commitments - Property, plant, and equipment 
The parent entity had no capital commitments for property, plant, and equipment as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 
2020. 
  
Significant accounting policies 
The accounting policies of the parent entity are consistent with those of the consolidated entity, as disclosed in note 1, except 
for the following: 
●  Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less any impairment, in the parent entity. 
  
Note 27. Interests in subsidiaries 
  
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities, and results of the following subsidiaries in 
accordance with the accounting policy described in note 1: 
  
    Ownership interest 
  Principal place of business /  2021  2020 
Name  Country of incorporation  %  % 
       
SCM Comet Constelación  Chile  99.99%   99.99%  
Bastion Minerals (El Fuerte) Pty Ltd  Australia  100.00%   - 
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Note 28. Events after the reporting period 
  
On 17 January 2022, the Company announced that it had appointed Alvaro Trujillo as Country Manager in Chile, in order to 
drive the consolidated entity towards its maiden drill program within the Capote Mining District and surrounding vein systems 
in the mineral rich Atacama Region of Chile. 
  
No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2021 that has significantly affected, or may significantly 
affect the consolidated entity's operations, the results of those operations, or the consolidated entity's state of affairs in future 
financial years. 
  
Note 29. Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net cash used in operating activities 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Loss after income tax expense for the year  (3,078,815)  (1,058,784) 
     
Adjustments for:     
Depreciation and amortisation  67,942   162  
Share-based payments  818,223   157,095  
Impairment of exploration  74,712   132,419  
     
Change in operating assets and liabilities:     

Decrease in trade and other receivables  65,995   144,708  
Increase in other operating assets  (153,457)  (195,299) 
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables  (230,534)  49,716  
Increase in employee benefits  15,940   -   

     
Net cash used in operating activities  (2,419,994)  (769,983) 
  
Note 30. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 
  
  Related party  Convertible  Cash   Leases   
  loan  note  payment    Total 
Consolidated  $  $  $  $  $ 
           
Balance at 1 January 2020  1,212,806  764,860  -  -  1,977,666 
Net cash used in financing activities  (50,446)  -  -  -  (50,446) 
Other changes  (1,162,360)  (764,860)  102,103  -  (1,825,117) 
           
Balance at 31 December 2020  -  -  102,103  -  102,103 
Net cash used in financing activities  -  -  (102,103)  (23,302)  (125,405) 
Acquisition of leases  -  -  -  1,048,463  1,048,463 
           
Balance at 31 December 2021  -  -  -  1,025,161  1,025,161 
  
Note 31. Earnings per share 
  
  Consolidated 
  2021  2020 
  $  $ 
     
Loss after income tax attributable to the owners of Bastion Minerals Limited  (3,078,815)  (1,058,784) 
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  Number  Number 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic earnings per share  72,034,240  20,427,756 
     
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted earnings per share  72,034,240  20,427,756 
  
  Cents  Cents 
     
Basic loss per share  (4.27)  (5.18) 
Diluted loss per share  (4.27)  (5.18) 
  
Options that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future, were not included in the calculation of diluted 
earnings per share because they are antidilutive. 
  
Note 32. Share-based payments 
  
Options 
 
During the current year the Company issued options to directors, employees, and consultants as part of their remuneration.  
Set out below are summaries of options granted under the plan: 
  

 

 
Number of 

options 

 Weighted 
average 

exercise price 

 
Number of 

options 

 Weighted 
average 

exercise price 
  2021  2021  2020  2020 
         
Outstanding at the beginning of the financial year  -  $0.0000  -  $0.0000 
Granted  14,477,562  $0.2569   -  $0.0000 
Forfeited  (1,000,000)  $0.3000   -  $0.0000 
         
Outstanding at the end of the financial year  13,477,562  $0.2537   -  $0.0000 
         
Exercisable at the end of the financial year  1,477,562  $0.2500   -  $0.0000 
  
2021               
      Balance at       Expired/   Balance at  
    Exercise   the start of       forfeited/  the end of  
Grant date  Expiry date  price  the year  Granted  Exercised   other  the year 
               
19/01/2021  19/01/2024  $0.2500   -  6,000,000  -  -  6,000,000 
11/03/2021  11/03/2024  $0.2500   -  1,477,562  -  -  1,477,562 
31/05/2021  31/05/2024  $0.3000   -  2,000,000  -  (1,000,000)  1,000,000 
15/11/2021  15/11/2024  $0.2500   -  5,000,000  -  -  5,000,000 
      -  14,477,562  -  (1,000,000)  13,477,562 
  
Weighted average exercise price  $0.0000  $0.2596   $0.0000  $0.3000   $0.2537  
  
The 1,477,562 options over ordinary shares were granted on 11 March 2021 were granted to the lead manager for the IPO.  
An additional 5,000,000 options were granted to a consultant on 15 November 2021, as remuneration for consulting services 
provided.  
  
The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at the end of the financial year was 2.40 years. 
  
Performance rights 
  
During the current year 2,700,000 performance rights were granted with the performance hurdle of two significant drill 
intercepts at the consolidated entity's projects.   
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A total of  5,250,000 performance rights were issued with the five following performance hurdles, and a further 1,050,000 
were granted which only have the first two performance hurdles :- 
  
●  Defined pre JORC gold resource of 250,000 ounces; or 
●  Defined pre JORC copper resource of 100,000 tonnes; or 
●  The sale of 100% interest in one of the consolidated entity's projects; or  
●  The consolidated entity entering into a project farm in or joint venture, that funds up to 50% of the pre-feasibility costs  

in relation to one of the group the projects; or  
●  The consolidated entity entering into a joint venture arrangement in relation to one of the consolidated entity's projects 

where the third party hold an interest of at least 30%. 
  
A further 1,250,000 performance rights have been granted with the below hurdles:- 
  
●  Defined pre JORC gold resource of 1,000,000 ounces; or 
●  Defined pre JORC copper resource of 20,000,000 tonnes. 
  
The Directors best estimate of the recipient’s ability to achieve the performance targets referred to above have been 
incorporated directly into the fair value of each tranche of performance rights 
  
Set out below are summaries of performance rights granted during year: 
  
2021               
      Balance at       Expired/   Balance at  
    Exercise   the start of       forfeited/  the end of  
Grant date  Expiry date  price  the year  Granted *  Exercised   other  the year 
               
28/04/2021  28/04/2024  $0.0000  -  1,500,000  -  -  1,500,000 
01/05/2021  01/05/2024  $0.0000  -  1,000,000  -  -  1,000,000 
25/05/2021  25/05/2024  $0.0000  -  250,000  -  -  250,000 
31/05/2021  28/04/2024  $0.0000  -  7,500,000  -  -  7,500,000 
      -  10,250,000  -  -  10,250,000 
  
*  AASB 2 defines grant date as the date at which the entity and the employee (or other party providing similar services) 

agree to a share-based payment arrangement, being when the entity and the counterparty have a shared understanding 
of the terms and conditions of the arrangement. However, 2,750,000 of these rights have not actually been issued as 
at 31 December 2021, and approval for their issue is to be sought from shareholders at the AGM to be held on 25 May 
2022. 

  
The weighted average remaining contractual life of performance rights outstanding at the end of the financial year was 2.33 
years 
  
Valuation model inputs 
  
For the options granted during the current financial year, the valuation model inputs used to determine the fair value at the 
grant date, are as follows: 
  
    Share price  Exercise  Expected  Dividend  Risk-free  Fair value 
Grant date  Expiry date  at grant date  price  volatility  yield  interest rate  at grant date 
               
19/01/2021  19/01/2024  $0.1000   $0.2500   100.00%   -  0.10%   $0.0429  
12/03/2021  11/03/2024  $0.2000   $0.2500   95.00%   -  0.10%   $0.1087  
31/05/2021  31/05/2024  $0.1900   $0.3000   95.00%   -  0.11%   $0.0938  
11/11/2021  15/11/2024  $0.2700   $0.2500   95.00%   -  1.10%   $0.1651  
  
For the performance rights granted during the current financial year, the valuation model inputs used to determine the fair 
value at the grant date, include the performance hurdles as discussed above and the below assumptions:  
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              Risk-free  Fair 
Grant     Expiry  Number   Share price  Exercise  Dividend yield  interest rate  value at  
date    date  granted   at grant date  price  %  %  grant date 
                 
28/04/2021    28/04/2024  450,000  $0.1950   $0.0000  95.00%   0.10%   $0.1290  
28/04/2021    28/04/2024  1,050,000  $0.1950   $0.0000  95.00%   0.10%   $0.0490  
01/05/2021    01/05/2024  1,000,000  $0.2250   $0.0000  95.00%   0.10%   $0.0230  
25/05/2021    25/05/2024  250,000  $0.1950   $0.0000  95.00%   0.10%   $0.0200  
31/05/2021    31/05/2024  2,250,000  $0.1950   $0.0000  95.00%   0.10%   $0.1290  
31/05/2021    31/05/2024  5,250,000  $0.1950   $0.0000  95.00%   0.10%   $0.1070  
  
Directors Share Loans 
  
During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain directors were provided loan shares with interest bearing, limited recourse 
loans ('Director Share Loans') from the Company for the sole purpose of acquiring shares in the Company. The Director 
Share Loans are recognised as an equity-settled share-based payment under AASB2. The Director Share Loans represent 
an “in substance option” arrangement and have been valued using option pricing models. 1,793,722 shares issued (after 
share consolidation on 14 December 2020) are restricted from trading for a 2-year period from ASX listing date. 
  
Key Executives Receiving Share Based Payment 
  
      Share price at   Loan per  Fair value 

Participant 
 Number 

issued 
 
Grant Date 

 
date of issue 

 
share 

 
per share 

           
Ross Landles *  7,175,087  17/11/2020  $0.05   $0.05   $0.007  
David Nolan *  7,175,087  17/11/2020  $0.05   $0.05   $0.007  
Dr Andrew Stewart *  7,175,087  17/11/2020  $0.05   $0.05   $0.007  
  
* Subsequent to the share consolidation on 14 December 2020, the number of shares for each director are 3,587,544 and 
the loan per share of $0.10, equating to a Loan Amount of $358,754.35 per director 
  
As the shares have vested, for the period ended 31 December 2020, $157,095 was recognised in the consolidated statement 
of profit and loss and other comprehensive income being the total value determined for the Director Share Loans. 
  
Director Share Loans conditions 
  
The key terms of the Director Share Loans are as follows: 
  
●  The interest rate attributable to the loan is accordance with Division 7A of the Tax Act; 
●  The loan shall be applied by the Company directly toward payment of the issue price of the Shares; 
●  The loan term is 7 years from the date of issue of the Shares; 
●  A borrower must make minimum yearly repayments in line with the loan agreement over the life of the loan, but may 

elect to repay the loan amount prior to the loan repayment date; 
●  The Company shall have a lien over the Shares in respect of which a loan is outstanding and the Company shall be 

entitled to sell those Shares in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement; 
●  The loan will be non-recourse in that the Company may only access the Shares to which the loan relates held by the 

borrower in the event under the loan agreement default; and 
●  The total loan will be $0.10 per Share which shall be deemed to have been drawn down at settlement upon issue of the 

Shares. 
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In the directors' opinion: 
  
●  the attached financial statements and notes comply with the Corporations Act 2001, the Accounting Standards, the 

Corporations Regulations 2001, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements; 
  
●  the attached financial statements and notes comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the 

International Accounting Standards Board as described in note 1 to the financial statements; 
  
●  the attached financial statements and notes give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's financial position as at 

31 December 2021 and of its performance for the financial year ended on that date; and 
  
●  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due 

and payable. 
  
The directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001. 
  
Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors made pursuant to section 295(5)(a) of the Corporations Act 2001. 
  
On behalf of the directors 
  

  
___________________________ 
Ross Landles 
 
31 March 2021 
  

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

31 March 2022
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Independent auditor’s report to the members Bastion Minerals Limited  

Report on the audit of the financial report  

Opinion 
We have audited the financial report of Bastion Minerals Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries 
(collectively the Group), which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 
December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, 
and the directors’ declaration. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations 
Act 2001, including: 

a) Giving a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 
2021 and of its consolidated financial performance for the year ended on that date; and 

b) Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001. 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor 
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Material uncertainty related to going concern 
We draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which describes the principal conditions that raise 
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. These events or conditions indicate 
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Key audit matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial report of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of 
our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, but we do not provide 
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit 
addressed the matter is provided in that context. 
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial report section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit 
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial report. The results of our audit procedures, including the 
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 
accompanying financial report. 

Carrying value of capitalised exploration and evaluation assets 

Why significant How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

At 31 December 2021 the Group held capitalised 
exploration and evaluation assets of $2.6 million. 
The carrying value of exploration and evaluation 
expenditure is assessed for impairment when 
facts and circumstances indicate the capitalised 
exploration and evaluation expenditure may 
exceed its recoverable amount. 
The determination as to whether there are any 
indicators to require the Group’s exploration 
projects to be assessed for impairment involves 
judgment, including: 

• whether the Group’s exploration licenses are 
current; 

• the Group’s ability and intention to continue to 
evaluate and develop the projects; and 

• whether the results of the Group’s exploration 
and evaluation work to date are sufficiently 
progressed for a decision to be made as to the 
commercial viability or otherwise of the 
project.   

Given the value of the asset and the judgmental 
nature of impairment indicator assessments 
associated with exploration and evaluation 
assets, we considered this to be a key audit 
matter. 

Our audit procedures included the following: 

• Considered the Group’s right to explore in the 
relevant exploration area which included 
obtaining and assessing relevant 
documentation. 

• Considered the Group’s intention to carry out 
significant exploration and evaluation activity 
in the relevant exploration area which 
included assessment of the Group’s cash flow 
forecast models and discussions with the 
Directors as to the intentions and strategy of 
the Group. 

• Assessed whether any evidence exists that 
would indicate that the carrying value of 
capitalised exploration and evaluation 
expenditure is unlikely to be recovered 
through development or sale. 

• Considered the adequacy of disclosures 
included within the notes of the financial 
report including those made with respect to 
judgements and estimates. 

 

Information other than the financial report and auditor’s report thereon 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Company’s 2021 annual report other than the financial report and our 
auditor’s report thereon. We obtained the directors’ report that is to be included in the annual report, 
prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the annual 
report after the date of this auditor’s report.  
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Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and we do not and will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, with the exception of the Remuneration Report 
and our related assurance opinion.  

In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
report or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial report 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a 
true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease 
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
► Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

► Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.  

► Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT



2021 ANNUAL REPORT  |   59   

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 4 

 

 

 

 

► Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.  

► Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

► Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business 
activities within the entity to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for 
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions 
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied. 
 

From the matters communicated to the directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial report of the current year and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on the audit of the Remuneration Report 

Opinion on the Remuneration Report 
We have audited the Remuneration Report included within the directors' report for the year ended 31 
December 2021. 
 
In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Bastion Minerals Limited for the year ended 31 December 
2021, complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. 
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Responsibilities 
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 
Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. 
 
 
 

 
Ernst & Young 
 
 

 
Scott Nichols 
Partner 
Sydney 
31 March 2022 
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Bastion Minerals Limited 
Shareholder Information 
2021 Annual Report 
Additional information required by the Australian Securities Exchange Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed 
elsewhere in the Report is set out below. The information is current as of 17 March 2022. 

a) The distribution of holders of quoted securities (fully paid ordinary shares)
Range  Securities  % No. of 

holders 
% 

1 to 1,000 2,384 0.00 13 3.12 
1,001 to 5,000 160,685 0.19 50 11.99 
5,001 to 10,000 331,553 0.39 40 9.59 
10,001 to 100,000 7,540,787 8.88 182 43.65 
100,001 and over 76,842,667 90.53 132 31.65 
Total 84,878,076 100.00 417 100.00 

b) The distribution of holders of unquoted securities (performance rights)
Range  Securities  % No. of 

holders 
% 

1 to 1,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 
1,001 to 5,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 
5,001 to 10,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 
10,001 to 100,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 
100,001 and over 7,500,000 100.00 3 100.00 
Total 7,500,000 100.000 3 100.000 

c) The distribution of holders of unquoted securities (options)
Range  Securities  % No. of 

holders 
% 

1 to 1,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 
1,001 to 5,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 
5,001 to 10,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 
10,001 to 100,000 0 0.00 0 0.00 
100,001 and over 14,477,562 100.00 7 100.00 
Total 14,477,562 100.000 7 100.000 

d) Unmarketable Parcel of Shares
The number of shareholders holding less than a marketable parcel of ordinary shares is 44 who have a
balance of 2,632 shares or less, based on the Company’s share price of $0.19 on 15 March 2022.

e) Substantial Shareholders
Name Number of 

shares 
% of total 

shares 
issued 

7,633,939 8.99 NASDAQ SECURITIES AUSTRALIA PTY LTD  
MR ALAN ROSS LANDLES AND ASSOCIATES 4,557,544 5.37 

f) Stock Exchanges
The Company’s ordinary fully paid shares are listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX).

g) Voting Rights
On a show of hands, every member present at a meeting in person or by proxy, shall have one vote and
upon each share, shall have one vote.

There are no other classes of equity securities.
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h) 20 largest holders of quoted securities (fully paid ordinary shares) 
Rank Name Number of shares  % of total 

shares 
issued 

1 NASDAQ SECURITIES AUSTRALIA PTY LTD 7,633,939  8.99 
2 MR SAM RAHIM AND ASSOCIATES 6,305,000 7.43 
3 MR ALAN ROSS LANDLES AND ASSOCIATES 4,557,544 5.37 
4 DR ANDREW STEWART AND ASSOCIATES 4,032,544 4.75 
5 MR DAVID NOLAN AND ASSOCIATES 3,892,769 4.59 
6 MR RALPH STAGG AND ASSOCIATES 3,455,187 4.07 
7 BELLARINE GOLD PTY LTD <RIBBLESDALE SUPER FUND A/C> 2,732,712 3.22 
8 MR MATHEW CARL BROWN 1,651,150 1.95 
9 MR GEOFFREY STUART CROW 1,632,643 1.92 

10 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 1,429,006 1.68 

11 MR GREGORY JOHN HOWE & MS TRACIE LEE VELLA <TAG SUPER FUND 
A/C> 1,300,000 1.53 

12 MRS CORINNE MARIE-LOUISE O'TOOLE 1,221,210 1.44 
13 MR MICHAEL LEE AIREY <MLA A/C> 1,108,040 1.31 
14 SYMINGTON PTY LTD 1,100,000 1.30 

15 DAVID HENRY CECIL FLOYD & HENRY FRANCIS CECIL VANE <EST 
HENRY E C FLOYD A/C> 1,022,327 1.20 

16 R A 45 PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
17 TERKZEN PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
18 FIRST CITY NOMINEES PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
19 ALACORP INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <AM FAMILY NO 2 A/C> 800,000 0.94 
20 W-TWO PTY LTD <W-TWO A/C> 760,880 0.90 

 Total Top 20 47,634,951 56.12 
 Balance of Register  37,243,125 43.88 
 Total fully paid ordinary shares on issue 84,878,076 100.00 

 
i) On-market buy-back 

There is no current on-market buy-back.  

j) Securities purchased on-market during the reporting period 
No Securities purchased on-market during the reporting period.  

 

Bastion Minerals Limited 
Shareholder Information 
2021 Annual Report 

 

h) 20 largest holders of quoted securities (fully paid ordinary shares) 
Rank Name Number of shares  % of total 

shares 
issued 

1 NASDAQ SECURITIES AUSTRALIA PTY LTD 7,633,939  8.99 
2 MR SAM RAHIM AND ASSOCIATES 6,305,000 7.43 
3 MR ALAN ROSS LANDLES AND ASSOCIATES 4,557,544 5.37 
4 DR ANDREW STEWART AND ASSOCIATES 4,032,544 4.75 
5 MR DAVID NOLAN AND ASSOCIATES 3,892,769 4.59 
6 MR RALPH STAGG AND ASSOCIATES 3,455,187 4.07 
7 BELLARINE GOLD PTY LTD <RIBBLESDALE SUPER FUND A/C> 2,732,712 3.22 
8 MR MATHEW CARL BROWN 1,651,150 1.95 
9 MR GEOFFREY STUART CROW 1,632,643 1.92 

10 HSBC CUSTODY NOMINEES (AUSTRALIA) LIMITED 1,429,006 1.68 

11 MR GREGORY JOHN HOWE & MS TRACIE LEE VELLA <TAG SUPER FUND 
A/C> 1,300,000 1.53 

12 MRS CORINNE MARIE-LOUISE O'TOOLE 1,221,210 1.44 
13 MR MICHAEL LEE AIREY <MLA A/C> 1,108,040 1.31 
14 SYMINGTON PTY LTD 1,100,000 1.30 

15 DAVID HENRY CECIL FLOYD & HENRY FRANCIS CECIL VANE <EST 
HENRY E C FLOYD A/C> 1,022,327 1.20 

16 R A 45 PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
17 TERKZEN PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
18 FIRST CITY NOMINEES PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
19 ALACORP INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <AM FAMILY NO 2 A/C> 800,000 0.94 
20 W-TWO PTY LTD <W-TWO A/C> 760,880 0.90 

 Total Top 20 47,634,951 56.12 
 Balance of Register  37,243,125 43.88 
 Total fully paid ordinary shares on issue 84,878,076 100.00 

 
i) On-market buy-back 

There is no current on-market buy-back.  

j) Securities purchased on-market during the reporting period 
No Securities purchased on-market during the reporting period.  
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h) 20 largest holders of quoted securities (fully paid ordinary shares) 
Rank Name Number of shares  % of total 

shares 
issued 

1 NASDAQ SECURITIES AUSTRALIA PTY LTD 7,633,939  8.99 
2 MR ALAN ROSS LANDLES AND ASSOCIATES 4,557,544 5.37 
3 MR SAM RAHIM AND ASSOCIATES 4,055,000 4.78 
4 DR ANDREW STEWART AND ASSOCIATES 4,032,544 4.75 
5 MR DAVID NOLAN AND ASSOCIATES 3,892,769 4.59 
6 MR RALPH STAGG AND ASSOCIATES 3,455,187 4.07 
7 BELLARINE GOLD PTY LTD <RIBBLESDALE SUPER FUND A/C> 2,732,712 3.22 
8 RNAJ PTY LTD <RNAJ STAGG SUPER FUND A/C> 2,317,500 2.73 
9 MR MATHEW CARL BROWN 1,651,150 1.95 

10 MR GEOFFREY STUART CROW 1,632,643 1.92 

11 MR GREGORY JOHN HOWE & MS TRACIE LEE VELLA <TAG SUPER FUND 
A/C> 1,300,000 1.53 

12 EISHA INTERNATIONAL LTD <SUKKAR FAMILY A/C> 1,300,000 1.53 
13 MRS CORINNE MARIE-LOUISE O'TOOLE 1,221,210 1.44 
14 MR MICHAEL LEE AIREY <MLA A/C> 1,108,040 1.31 
15 SYMINGTON PTY LTD 1,100,000 1.30 

16 DAVID HENRY CECIL FLOYD & HENRY FRANCIS CECIL VANE <EST 
HENRY E C FLOYD A/C> 1,022,327 1.20 

17 R A 45 PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
18 TERKZEN PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
19 FIRST CITY NOMINEES PTY LTD 1,000,000 1.18 
20 ALACORP INVESTMENTS PTY LTD <AM FAMILY NO 2 A/C> 800,000 0.94 

 Total Top 20 46,812,565 55.15 
 Balance of Register  38,065,511 44.85 
 Total fully paid ordinary shares on issue 84,878,076 100.00 

 
i) On-market buy-back 

There is no current on-market buy-back.  

j) Securities purchased on-market during the reporting period 
No Securities purchased on-market during the reporting period.  

Tenement Schedule 
The consolidated entity hold licenses for the following tenements 

No
. 

Concession 
name Registered owner Type of 

concession Status Siz
e Project 

1 ESTRELLA I B SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 300 Capot

e 

2 ESTRELLA II B SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 300 Capot

e 

3 ESTRELLA III B SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 300 Capot

e 
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4 ESTRELLA IV B SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 300 Capot

e 

5 ESTRELLA IX B SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 100 Capot

e 

6 ESTRELLA V B SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 300 Capot

e 

7 ESTRELLA VI B   SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 300 Capot

e 

8 ESTRELLA VII B SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 300 Capot

e 

9 ESTRELLA VIII 
B 

SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Granted 200 Capot

e 

10 FENIX 2G SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Under 

Application 100 Capot
e 

11 FENIX 3A SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Under 

Application 300 Capot
e 

12 FENIX 3B SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Under 

Application 300 Capot
e 

13 FENIX 3C SCM 
CONSTELACION Exploration Under 

Application 300 Capot
e 
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